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2012 12 ’ ’ ' '

15 650, 960 72,810 0.01 1.1185
2013 12 ’ ’ ' '

16 543,857 60,830 0.01 1.1185
2014 12 ’ ’ ' '

17 322,140 36,031 0.01 1.1185
2015 12 ’ ’ ' '

18 417,715 46,721 0.01 1.1185
2016 12 ’ ’ ' '

19 478,876 53,562 0.01 1.1185
2017 12 ’ ’ ' '

20 454,841 50,874 0.01 1.1185
2018 12 ’ ’ ' '
2018 498,017 55,703 0.01 1.1185
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2009 12 31 (19,966,657,973) (30,820,538,604) (70,495,706,675)
201102 19,776,791,008 19,450,670,090 70,821,827,593
2010 12 31 (19,776,791,008) (19,450,670,090) (70,821,827,593)
201113 23,010,473,517 23,825,547,784 70,006,753,326
2011 12 31 (23,010,473,517) (23,825,547,784) (70,006,753,326)
201124 19,544,365,998 16,619,330,187 72,931,789,137
2012 12 31 (19,544,365,998) (16,619,330,187) (72,931,789,137)
201135 29,616,936,214 37,452,682,018 65,096,043,333
2013 12 31 (29,616,936,214) (37,452,682,018) (65,096,043,333)
201146 25,327,731,586 36,038,052,718 54,385,722,201
2014 12 31 (25,327,731,586) (36,038,052,718) (54,385,722,201)
.201157 32,689,395,308 54,861,104,388 32,214,013,121
2015 12 31 (32,689,395,308) (54,861,104,388) (32,214,013,121)
201168 38,118,395,809 28,560,924 ,634 41,771,484,296
5016 12 31 (38,118,395,809) (28,560,924,634) (41,771,484,296)
201179 21,101,112,501 14,984,981,565 47,887,615,232
2017 12 31 (21,101,112,501) (14,984,981,565) (47,887,615,232)
201280 23,247,506,828 25,651,021,320 45,484,100,740
2018 12 31 (23,247,506,828) (25,651,021,320) (45,484,100,740)
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2 | Wells Fargo Securities LLC PRI 275 WIHEEHA1 8 999
3 | H5BC Securities {LISA) Inc PR S 275 HIHESH1H &.61
4 | BNP PARIBAS, 5.4, RP BRI 276 20194 5 H21H 6.11
5 | Barclays Capital inc PG IS 275 WIMESF 18 .95
& | UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY A A 0.00 HIMFEEFEH L8 I
7 | The Bank of Mova Scotia (Toronto Branch) BRI 280 WS H1H 4.95
8 | UNITED STATES TREASURY FLOATIM FRMY BT 247 2019 7 2318 458
2 | Momura Securities Intemational e PR ES ] 75 WIHESH1H 429
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2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
© 454,352,163 50,819,289 478,680,952 53,540,464
(b) 917,642 102,638 591,413 66,150
47,429 5,305
455,269,805 50,921,928 479,319,794 53,611,919
10 97,552 10,911 38,151 4,267
3,902 436 4,005 448
78,036 8,728 100,109 11,197
458 51 1,075 120
7,958 890 7,960 890
80,840 9,042 102,682 11,485
23,402 2,618 23,884 2,671
52,226 5,841 51,295 5,737
17,107 1,913 17,719 1,982
17,309 1,936 45,230 5,059
37,492 4,193 29,080 3,253
12,516 1,400 22,452 2,511
428,798 47,961 443,642 49,621
454,841,007 50,873,967 478,876,152 53,562,298
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2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

(©) 9,959,303 1,113,948 5,958,219 666,427
9,959,303 1,113,948 5,958,219 666,427

48,487 5,423 46,840 5,239

1,453,439 162,567 1,056,442 118,163

30,387 3,399 30,453 3,406

19,998 2,237 19,998 2,237

1,333,297 149,129 1,056,442 118,163

96,936 10,842 93,662 10,476

156,728 17,530 95,503 10,682

17,861 1,998 18,595 2,080

69,791 7,806 58,430 6,535

48,071 5,377 36,398 4,071

(15,303) (1,712) 12,974 1,451

3,259,692 364,597 2,525,737 282,504
3,259,692 364,597 2,525,737 282,504
6,699,611 749,351 3,432,482 383,923

10 (6,699,611) (749,351) (3,432,482) (383,923)
(6,699,611) (749, 351) (3,432,482) (383,923)

83/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
478,876,152 53,562,298 417,714,843 46,721,405
232,475,068 26,002,336 211,011,125 23,601,594
(256,510,213) (28,690,667)  (149,849,816) (16,760,702)
454,841,007 50,873,967 478,876,152 53,562,298
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31

41,771,484,296 21,101,112,501 | (14,984,981,565) 47,887,615,232

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
454,841,007 0.01 478,876,152 0.01
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417,714,843 0.01

94/258



EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
6,699,611 3,432,482
11
(a
(
(

95/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60

96/258



0

2018 12 31
1.27

2017 12 31

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.08

97/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
36.71 38.59
24.59 21.20
19.10 19.00
19.60 21.21
100.00 100.00

2018 12 31 2017 12 31

2018 12 31 2017 12 31

(c

98/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
454,352,163 478,680,952
917,642 591,413
47,429
455,269,805 479,319,794
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
99.89
99.96
«
(
(
100

99/258




12

13

14

15

16

17

2018 12 31

2018 12 31

EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

2017 12 31

102

2018 12 31

2018

2017 12 31

2017 12 31

28

100/258

Ooooooooooooooooooad

29



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18
2018 12
2018
2018
2018 10
2018 28
90 100
90 100
0.85 0.70
19
2019 28
2019 28
2019 28
20
21

2019 12

101/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31
@)
454,352,163 (b) 2.73 454,352,163 99.89
©@

454,352,163 99.89

454,352,163 99.89

454,352,163 99.89

488,844 0.11

454,841,007 100.00

@) 2018 12 31

()
©

(D

102/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust {Ireland)
Statement of Financial Position
Asg at 31 December 2018

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Haotes Uss Uss
Asseals
Finansial assets at fair value through profit or loss JcyB 454,352,163 478,680,952
Income receivable Hb 217 642 501,413
Qthar assels - 47 428
Total Assats 455,768 805 478,315,794
Liabilities
Distribution payakie 10 g7.552 38151
Managemant Company fees payable 7 J.802 4,005
Investment Advizer lees payable T 78035 100,109
Adminsualion fees pavable T 458 1,075
Depositary fees payable ? 7858 7,880
Distributor hees payable 7 80,840 102 682
Agent Company fees payable T 22402 23,884
Transfar Agant feas payabla ¥ 62,225 £1,295
Audit fees payable 17107 17,719
Legal fees payable 17,308 45,230
Printing fees payable 37,492 28,080
Ciher liabilities 12,516 22452
Total Lizbilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributakle
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 428,728 443 642
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemahle
Participating Units 39 454,841,007 475,076,152

On Behalf of Board of Directors of the New Manager

i 0/( v arkia N'Cannar

Darecpbr

o

Date. 12 April 2018

The accompanying nates form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

31 December 31 December
2018 2m7
Motes uss uss
Income
Dividend and Interest Income 3(b) 9,958 303 5958 219
Met Investment Income 9,959,303 5,958,219
Expenses
Management Company fees 7 48 487 46,840
Ivestment Adviser fees i 1,453 439 1.056 442
Administration fees 7 30,387 30,453
Depositary fees 7 19,598 18,598
Digtributor fees 7 1,333 297 1,056, 442
Agent Company fees Fi 96,536 93,662
Transfer Agency fees 7 156,728 95,503
Audit fees 17,851 18,595
Legal fees 59,791 58 430
Frinting fees 48 071 36,398
Other expenses (15,303} 12,874
Total Expenses 3,258,682 2,525,737
Irvestment AdviserDistributar fees waived ¥ - -
Total Operating Expenses 3,268 652 2,525 737
Operating profit 5,699,611 3,432,482
Finance Costs
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating units 10 (5,698.611) (3,432 483
Total Finance Gosts |6,688,611) (3.432,482)

Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units from Operations - -

Gains and losses arcse solely from contiruing investment activities. There were no gains or losses other than
those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Goldman Sachs USS Fund

A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders

of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Met assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units at start of year

Froceeds from redeemable participating units issued
Payments for redeemable participating units redeemed

Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at Year end

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

13

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

MNotes Uss Uss
478,876,162 417,714,843

& 232 475,068 211,011,125

8 (256,510,213) (143,849 816)
454,841,007 478,876,152
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

1. Organisation

Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland) (the “Trust”), previously named Goldman Sachs Money Market Funds i
a Unit Trust established as an umbrella fund, The Central Bank of Ireland authorised the Trust under the
Eurcpean Communities (Undertakings for Collective Irvestment in Transferable Securities) Regulations
2011, as amended (the "UCITS Regulations’),

The Trust has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management Global Services Limited ("GSAMGE") o be its
Manager. Refer to the Significant Agreements and Related Parties note for the functions the Manager
undertakes and delegates.

The Trust has appointed BMNY Mellon Trust Company (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”) to act as the
depositary of the Trust pursuant to the Trust Deed.

Az at 31 Decermnber 2018 the Trust had one sub-fund, the Goldman Sachs USS Fund (the “Fund’), which
invests, all or substantially all, of its assets in a Master Sub-Fund as detailed in the following table

Fund Currency | Master Sub-Fund Launch Date of Fund
Goldman Sachs USS Fund (the UsD Goldman Sachs USS 30-April-1599
“Fund")’ Treasury Liquid Reserves

Fund — ¥ Distribution Class®

uso Goldman Sachs USS Liguid
Reserves Fund - X
Distribution Class’

" The Fund changed name from Goldman Sachs LISS Money Market Fund on 28 September 2018

? Prior to 28 September 2018 the Fund invested all or substantially all of its assets in Geldman Sachs USS
Liquid Reserves Fund From 28 September 2018 and in accordance with the updated Prospectus on 28
Septernber 2018, the Fund invested substantialiy all of itz assets in Goldman Sachs USS Treasury Liquid
Resernes Fund.

The Master Sub-Fund is a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Funds, pic an open-ended invesiment company with
limited liakality, incorporated under the laws of Ireland and authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland as a
UCITS, The Annual Report and Audied Financial Statements of the Master Sub-Fund can be obtained from
the Administrator.

2. Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund s to maximise cumrent income to the extert consistent with the
presenvation of capital and the maintenance of liquidity. The Fund s a UCITS feeder fund and as such waill
imvest at least 50% in the Goldman Sachs USS Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund, a sub-fund of Galdman
Bachs Funds pic (the 'Master Sub-Fund), From time to time a smaill portion of the Fund's assets may be
retained in cash or irvested in cash equivalents, which may include instruments such as certificates of
deposit, ime deposits and Organisabon for Econonic Co-operation and Development (DECD) Governmert
securtes, master demand notes, variable rate demand notes o short term funding agreements, i1 being
understond that at no stage will such investments exceed 10% of the Met Asset Value of the Fund. Units in
the Fund may be redeemed daily on demand.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Trust has applies Financial Reporing Standards 102 {'FRS 1027 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK an Republic of Ireland”.

14
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Goldman Sachs USS Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

The Financial Statements are presented in Uinited States Dollars, the Trusts functional currency. The
Directors if the Manager consider that this currency most accurately represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Trust

The preparation of the financials staterments 15 in accordance with FRS 102, Irish Statute comprising the Uit
Trust Act 1990 and in according with the UCITS regulations. The financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis,

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors of the Manager to make cerain estimates
and assumptions that may affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Refer to the Liabilities section of the Statement of Financial Position and Mote 4 for instances where the
Directors of the Manager were required to make certain estimates and assumptions to determine fair value.
Actual results may differ from those estimates. Accounting Standard FRS 102 applied in preparing financial
statemnents giving a true and fair view are those published by the Institute of Chartered Accountant in Ireland
and issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

The financial statemerts have been prepared under the historical cost corvention as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial iabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

The format and certain wording of the financial statements has been adapted from those contained in FRS
102, Section 3 “Financial Statement Presentation” so that, in the opinion of the Manager, they more
appropriately reflect the nature of the Trust's business as an investment trust. In the opinion of the Manager,
the financial statements with the noted changes provide the information required by the Linit Trust Act 1580,

(b} Investments Transactions and Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

Imvestment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis Realised gans and losses are based on the
Weighted Average Cost Method, Dividend income and dividend expense are recordad on the ex-dividend date
and interest income and interest expense are accrued over the life of the investrment. Interest income includes
accretion of market discount, original issue discounts and amartisation of premiums and is recorded into income
aver the life of the underlying imvestment. Inferest income and dividend income are recognised on a gross basis
before withholding tae, if any.

Operating expenses are recognised on an accruals basis.
Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognised in the Statement of Comprebensive Income.
(e} Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation

Under FRS 102, in accounting for all of 2 financial instruments, an entity is required to apply edher (a) the full
requirernents of Sections 11 "Basac Financial Instruments” and Secton 12 “Cther Financial Instruments 1ssues”
of FRS 102, (b} the recognition and measurement provisions of International Accounting Stardards ("IAS") 39
“Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measuremert” ("IAS 397) as adopted for use in the European Union
and the disclosure requirements of Seclions 11 and 12, or {¢) the recognition and measurement provisians of
Irterrational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS™) 8 "Financial Instruments” [IFRS 97) and the disclosure
requirements of Sections 11 and 12. The Trust has elected to apply the recognition and measurement
provisions of 1AS 359 and the disclosure requirements of Sections 11 and 12

I. Classification
A financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is a financial asset or liabiity that is

classified as heldfortrading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. The following financial
imvestments are classified as held-for-trading: Callective Investment Schames,

Financial assets that are nat at fair value through profit or loss include accounts receivable.

Financial liabiliies that are not at fair value through profit or loss include accounts payable and financial
liabilities arising on Redeemable Linits.

15

107/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs USS Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(c) Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation (continued)

N, Recognition and Derecognilion

The Trust recognises financial assets and financial liakilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the investment. Purchases and sales of financial assels and financial liabilities are recognised
using trade date accounting. From trade date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the
financial assets or financial iabilities are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
ar the Trust has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership,

Wi, Fair Value Measurement FPrinciples

Financal assats and financial liabiities at fair value through profit of loss are valued in accordance with 145 39,
Financial assets and financial liatilities are initially recorded at ther transaction price and then measured at fair
value subsequent to initial recognition. Gains and lesses anising from changes in the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the periad in which they anse,

Financial assets classifed as receivables ane carmed at cost less impairment losses, if any. Financial labiltes,

ather than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at cost Financial liabilities ansing from

redeemable units msed by the Trust are carried at the redemption amaunt representing the imestors’ nght to a

mm; amount of the Trusts MNet Assets Aftribitable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (“Net
ts").

The fair value of all securities and derivatives is determined according to the following policies:

{iii 1) Shares in Collective Investment Schames

The fair value of irvestments in open-ended collective investrment schemes, includng UCITS collectve
investrment schemes, is based upon the net asset value per share as supplied by the Master Sub-Fund, in
accordance with the valuation policy of the Master Sub-Fund as outlined in its prospectus

fiii 2) AN Securilies

If a quoted market price i not available from a third party pricing service or a dealer, or a quatation is
believed to be materially inaccurate, the fair value of the investment is determined by using valuation
techniques, Valuation technigues include the use of recent market transactions, reference to the current fair
value of another investment that is substantially the same, discownted cash flow analyses ar any other
technigques that provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market transactions,

Such securities and denvatives shall be valued at their probabtle realisation value as determined by a Valuer.
The Valuer during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 was Goldman Sachs & Co
LLC and the wvaluation function was performed by Goldman Sache Investment Management Division
Controllers (“IMD Controllers").
The investments have been valued in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that require
the use of certain estimates and assumplions to determine fair value. Although these estimates and
assumplions are basad on the best available information, actual results could be matenally differert from
these estimates.
Refer to Mote 4 for securities where the Valuer was used to determine fair value,

(d) Cash

Cash is valued at cost, which approximates fair value,
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Goldman Sachs USS Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

() Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the date of
the transaction. Assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into LS Dollars at the
foreign currency clasing exchange rate in effect at the yvear end date. Foreign currency exchange differences
arising on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals or settlements of assels and liabilties are
recognised in the Statemert of Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses relating
to imvestments at fair value through profit or loss, denivative financial investments, and all other foreign
currency exchange gaing of losses relating to monetary items, including cash and cash equivalents, are
reflected im the net realised investment gainf{loss) or net change in unrealised investment gainfloss) in the
Staterment of Comprehensive [Rcome.

(f) Finance Costs

Distributions  declared on the Redeemable Participating Units are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as Finance Costs.

(g} Redeemable Participating Units

All Redeemable Participating Units issued by the Trust provide the investors with the right to redeem for cash
at the value propartionate to the investor's shane in the Trust's Met Assets on the redemption date,

In accordance with FRS 102, Section 22 “Liabilibes and Equity”, such Units have been classified as a
financial liability at the value of the redemption amount in the Statement of Financial Position. The Trust is
contractually obliged to redeem Unils in accordance with the Prospectus.

4. Valuation Determined by the Valuer
Az at 31 December 218 and 31 December 2017, there were no assets where estimates and assumplions
wiere used to determine fair value.

8. Taxation
Under current Inish law and practice, the Trust gualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section

7388 of the Taxes Consclidation Act, 18957, as amended. Cn that basis Insh tax is not chargeable to the
Trust on its incame or capital gains.

The Trust will not be liable o Irish tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a
chargeable event A chargeable event includes any distribution to Unitholders or any encashment,
redemption or transfer of Units or appropriation or cancellation of Units, or a deemed dispesal of Units every
8 years beginning from the date of the acquizition of those Uinits, but does not ocowr in respect of:

(2) Unitholders wha are neither Insh Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident for tax purposes at the time of
the chargeable event and who have provided the Trust with a relevant declaration to that effect; and

(b) certain exempted Insh tax resident Unitholders who have provided the Trust with the necessary signed
statutory declarations.

A chargeable event does not include:
(i} any trarsaction in relation to Units held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the
Revenue Commigsioners of Ireland,

(i} an exchange by Unitholders, effected by way of an arm's length bargain where no payment is made to the
Unitholders of Lnits in the Trust for other Units in the Trust;
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Goldman Sachs USS Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

5. Taxation (continued)

(i) anexchange of Linits arising on a qualified amalgamation or reconstructan of a fund with another fund,
ar

(v} a transfer by a Unitholder of the entitierment to a Unit where the transfer is between spouses and former
spouses, subject to cerain conditions.

In the absence of an approprate declaration, the Trust will be hable for Insh tax on the coourrence of a
chargeable evert and the Trust reserves s right to withhold such taxes from Unitholders. Capital gains,
dividends and interest received by the Trust may be subject to taxes, including withholding taxes in the
countries in which the issuers of investments are included, which may be reflected in the Met Asset Value
("NAVT) of the Trust. Such taxes may not be recoverable by the Trust or its Unitholders,

6. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Under Amendments to FRS 102, Section 34, the Trust is required to classify fair value measurements using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs wsed in making the measurements. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markels that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical unrestricted assets or liabilities,

Level 2 - Clucted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which significart inputs are
cbservable (including but not limited to quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatility and credit spreads), either directly or indirectly. This may include the
Valuers' assumptions in determining fair value measurement;

Level 3 - Prices or wvalsations that require significant unobservable inputs (including the Valuers'
assumpticns in determining fair value measurement).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety shall
be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement. If a
fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on uncbservable
inputs, that measurement s a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the:
fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value in
accordance with FRS 102

[Financial Assets measured at fair value at 31 December 2018

Goldman Sachs US5 Fund ]
Level 1| Lavel 2 Level Total

| Uss TEE] u Uss

Financial Assets at fair value through profit

or loss _

Investments - Long 454,352,163 = = 454 352 163

Total mmnaﬁ — - 454352163
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Goldman Sachs USS Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

6. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Assets meaasured at fair value at 31 December 2017

Goldman Sachs USS Fund
l_.eveéa Lwe;g Le-.reg Totsaa
U u u u

Financial Assets at fair value through profit

or loss

|rvestments - Long 478 680 95 - - 478 680 952
Total 478,680, u 1478 680,952

7. Significant Agreements and Related Parties

r
As outlined in Mate 1, the Trust has appointed GSAMGS, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc., as its Manager. GSAMGS is entitled to receive an annual management fee which shall be
accrued daily and paid generally monthly in arrears, The amount eamed by the Manager was US548 437 for
the year under review (31 December 2017: USS45 840).

Flease refer to Mote 18 for details regarding the change in Manager from GSAMGS to Goldman Sachs Asset
Management Fund Services Limited.

Investment Adviser and Sub-Investment Adviser

The Manager ¢n behalf of the Trust has appainted Goldman Sachs Assset Management International (the
“Irvestment Adviser”), a related pary to the Trust, as Investment Adviser to the Trust. The Investment
Adviser has appointed Geoldman Sachs Asset Management Co., Limited as Sub-lnvestment Adviser to the
Trust. The Investment Adviser is entitied to receive an annual fee which shall be accrued daily and paid
generally monthly in arrears.

The annualised rates in effect during the year were:

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
Goldman Sachs USS Fund 0.30% 0.23%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Investment Adviser fees were:

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
Total Feas Waived Total Fees Waived
Goldman Sachs USS Fund USS1,453 439 LSENIl | USE1,006 442 LISSMIl

In respect of the Fund’s ifvestment in the Master Sub-Fund, the total annual fees and expenses, to be bome
at the Master Sub-Fund are capped at 0.05%. There are no investment manager fees payable for the USD
Class.

Total ordinary expenses, including fees and expenses of the Investment Adviser and Depositary together with
the Fund's share of the ordinary operational and administrative expenses of the Master Sub-Fund are
currently voluntanly mited o 0.70% (up until 28 September 2018: 0.85%) per annum of the daily net asset
value attnbutable to Redeemable Participating Unitholders.

The Irvestment Adviser has followed a voluntary policy of seeking to maintain 2 positive net yield in respect
of the Furnd. This is acheeved through various forms of fee waivers and expense reimbursements. The
positive yield target may vary from time to time at the digcretion of the Investment Adviger, and such
informaticn may be reported to the Fund's Unitholders or the public in @ manner that reflects the actual or
rounded yield of the Fund. Yield targets are not to be construed as guarantees or assurances of peformance
or preservation of captal. The Trust's prospectus provides more information, including the key risks of
imsesting im the Fund.

Investment Adviser/Distributor fees waived in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Financial Pesition may comprise of amounts waived as a result of the expense cap andfor amounis waived
as a result of maintaining a positive net yield.
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Goldman Sachs USS Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

7. Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Directors of the Manager Remuneration

Ms. Barbara Healy is an independent Director and has no executive function with the Investment Adviser or
its related party companies, The Manager pays each independent Directar an annual fee for their services as
director of the Manager.

Mr. Stephen Davies, Mr. Michael Helmes, Ms. Sheila Patel, Mr. Glenn Thorpe and Ms. Jackie O'Connor and
are related parties to the Investment Adviser and receive no compensation from the Trust or the Manager.

Mr. Michael Holmes was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 12 January
2018, Ms. Sheila Patel was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of &
February 2018, Ms. Jackie O'Connor was appainted as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager
as af 1 August 2018,

Administrator

The Manager has appointed BMNY Mellon Fund Services (lreland) Designated Activity Company (the
“Administrator) as administrator to the Trust. The Administrator is responsible for the adminéstration of the
Trust's affairs including the calculation of the MNet Asset Value and the preparation of financial statements.
The Administrator receives a fee for its senvices payable out of the assets of the Trust payable generally
monthly in arrears.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Administration fees for the Trust were USS30,387 (31 December
2017: USS30,453).

Depositary

The Trust has appointed BNY Mellan Trust Company (Ireland) Limited to act as the Depositary of the Fund
pursuant to the Trust Deed. In accordance with and subject to the Trust Deed, the Depositary provides safe
custody for all assets of the Fund which are held under the control of the Depositary in the Depositany's
custodial metwork. The Depositary receives a fee for its services payable out of the assets of the Trust
payable gensrally rmarthly in arrears,

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Depositary fees for the Trust were USS$19,998 (31 December
2017 USS19,998)

Distributors and Agent Company

The Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs International "GS17) , a related party to the Trust, as distributor
aof the Units. GS1 may act as distributer in Japan directly or appoint one or marne Cistributors in Japan. The
Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Managemert Co., Lid to act as Agent Company in Japan.

The Trust will pay the Distributors and Agent Company in Japan a fee at an annual rate based on the daily
net asset value attributable to Redeemable Paricipating Unitholders of the Trust

The annualised rates in effect during the year were:

31-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17

Goldman Sachs USS Fund
Distributor fees 0.28% 0.23%
Agent Campany fees 0.02% 0.02%
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7. Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Distributors and Agent Company (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 the Distributor and Agent Company fees

were
31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
Goldman Sachs USS Fund Total Fees Waived Total Fees Waived
Dhstributor fees LISS1, 333, 287 LISSMIl | USS1,056 442 LISSNIl
Agent Company fees EEEREED USEMIl S883 662 LSSl

Flease refer to Nate 19 for details regarding the change in Distnbutar from GSI to Goldman Sachs Asset
Management Fund Services Limited

Transfer Agent

The Manager has appointed RBC Investor Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Transfer Agent”) as registrar and
transfer agent of the Trust pursuant to the Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreemert between the Manager
and the Transfer Agent. The day-to-day services provided fo the Trust by the Transfer Agent include
receiving and processing subschptions and redemption orders, alloting and issuing Units and maintaining the
Unitholder regster for the Units. The Transfer Agert is paid a fee quarterly in arrears out of the net assets of
the Trust The amount eamed by the Transfer Agent was USS156,728 for the year under rewiew (31
December 2017 USSS5 503).

Valuer

The directors of the Manager have appainted Goldman Sachs & Co, LLC as its delegate to act as the Valuer
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 and the valuation function was performed
by IMD Contrallers, Flease alsa refer to Note 4

8 Unit Capital

The minimum intial imestment amount is USS10.00 for the Fund. The minimum subsequent investment
amount is US$0.01. Al of the Japanese distributors can, at their discretion, set higher minimum initial and
subsequent investment amounts.

The relevant movements on Unit capital are shown on the Statement of Changes in Met Asgets Attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units. The Fund invests the proceeds from the issue of Units in
appropriate imvestments while maintaimng sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions when necessary. Units in
the Furnd may be redeemed daily on demand.

The following tables summarise the activity in the Fund's Units.

Balance at Balance at
31 -Dec-2017 Subscriptions Redemptions 31-Dec-2018

Goldman Sachs USS
Fund
USE Bage Distribution 47 BET 515232 23,247 506 828 | (25651.021 320) 45 484 100,740

Balance at Balance at
31-Dec-2016 Subscriptions Redemptions 31-Dec-2017

Goldman Sachs USS
Fund

USS Base Distribution | 41.771.484.266 | 21.101,112.501 | (14.084.081.665) | 47 .BE7.615.032

1
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8. Net Asset Value (“NAV™)

The following tables summarise the Met Asset Value and the NAW per Unit of the Fund.

31-Dec-2018 31-Dec-2017
Met Asset Value | NAY Per Unit [ Net Asset Value | NAVY Per Unit

Goldman Sachs USS
Fund

LI5S Base Distnibution LI55454 841,007 LIS50.01 LISE478 876 152 uUss0.01

31-Dec-2016
MNet Asset Value | NAY Per Unit

Goldman Sachs USS
Fund
USS Bage Distnbution ISE417 714 843 LISE0.01

10. Distributions

The Trust may declare and distiibute dividends in respect of the Fund's Units on a daily basis to halders of
Redesmable Farticipating Units, Dividends declared by the Trust are, at the election of each Unithalder, paid
in cash or reinvested in additional Units, Upon declaration of any dividend, Net Assets Attributaile to Holders
of Redeemable Participating Units is reduced by the amount of such dividends,

The following table summarises dividends declared by the Fund:

31-Dec-2018 31-Dec-2017 |
Goldman Sachs USS Fund US56.609.611 US55, 432 82

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks

The Fund invests all, or substantially all, of it agsets inthe Master Sub-Fund, as outlined in Mate 1.

The Funds investing activities through the Master Sub-Fund expoese it to various types of risks that are
associated with the financial investments and markets in which it and the Master Sub-Fund invest (the
“Investment Risks").

The Fund's investment porifolio is comprised of collective investment schemes at year end. The directors of
the Manager have appointed the Investment Adviser to manage the investment risks of the Fund. The main
types of fimancial risks which the Fund is exposed to through the Master Sub-Fund are market risk, liquidity
risk and credit risk. The prospeclus provides details of these and other types of risk some of which are
additional to that information provided in thess financial statements,

Asset allocation of the Master Sub-Fund is determined by the Master Sub-Fund's Investment Adviser who
manages the allocation of assets to achieve the investment objectives as detailed in Nate 2. Achieverment of
the Master Sub-Fund's investment objectives involves taking risks. The Master Sub-Fund's Investment
Adviser exercises judgement based on analysis, research and nsk management techrigues when making
investment decisions. Divergence from the benchmark andi/or the target asset allocation and the composition
of the portfolic is monitored in accordance with the Master Sub-Fund's nsk management policy.

The rigk management palicles employed in relation to the Fund are cutlined below,
{a) Market Risk

The potential for changes in the fair value of the Fund's investment in the Master Sub-Fund is refermed to as
market risk. Commonly used categonies of market risk include currency risk, interest rate risk and other price

fisk.
(i} Currency risks may result from exposures to changes in spot prices, forward prices and volatilities of
currency rates.
22
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(a) Market Risk (continued)

() Interest rate nsks may result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the yield
curve, the volatiity of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credit spreads.

(in) Other price risks are the risk that the fair value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices other than those arising from cumrency risk or interest rate risk and may result from
exposures to changes in the prices and volatilittes of individual equities, equity baskets, equity indices,
and commodities.

The Master Sub-Fund's market risk strategy is driven by its investment rigk and refurn objectives,

Market risk s managed through the application of risk budgeting principles. The Master Sub-Fund's
Imvestment Adviser determines an appropriate risk target, commanly referred to as expected or predicted (i.e.
forward-locking) Tracking Error, employing a risk budgeting framework.

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs (“IMD MRAT) is responsible for independently monitoring,
analysing and reporting the market risks taken by the Master Sub-Fund's Investment Adviser. IMD MRA uses
a number of risk metrics to monitor the market risks including monitoring sensitivities. IMD MRA presents on
the market risks to the Board no less frequently than semi-annually.

Details of the Fund's investment parifalio at the reporting date are disclosed in the Schedule of Investments
I.  Currency Risk

The Master Sub-Fund, in which the Fund imvests, only invesis in assets denominated in itz functional
currency so it has no exposure to curmency rMsk

ii. Interest Rate Risk

The Master Sub-Fund, in which the Fund irvests, may imvest in fixed income securities. Any change to the
relevant interest rates for paricular securities may result in the Master Sub-Fund's Irvestment Adviser being
unable to secure similar returns upon the expiry of contracts or the sale of secwrities. In addition, changes to
prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in
the value of the securities held. In general, if interest rates rise, the value of the fixed income securities will
decline. A decline in interest rates will, in general, have the opposite effect. All fixed income securities and
fioating rate securities, together with their coupan rate and maturity date, are disclosed in the Schedule of
Investments of the Master Sub-Fund,

Al the year end the only investments of the Fund were in the Master Sub-Fund. The Master Sub-Fund is a
money market fund with a maximen weighted average maturity of 60 days. Given the nature of the
investments in the underlying Master Sub-Fund, it would be expected that the MAY of the Master Sub-Fund
would have a very low sensitivity to changing interest rates and other market conditions. However, it is
expected that the yields on the underlying Master Sub-Fund will mowe consistently with changes in the
avernight rates and prevailing maoney markiet benchmarks.

iii. Other Price Risk
Other price risk is the risk that the value of a financial investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in

market prices, other than those arising from currency risk or inferest rate risk whether caused by factors
specific to an individual investment, its issuer or any other factor affecting financial investments in the market.
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(a) Market Risk (continued)
iii. Other Price Risk {continued)

The Fund's investments in collective investment schemes are based upon the net asset values per share as
supplied by the callective investment scheme, in accordance with the valuation policy of the applicable
collective investment scheme as outlined in its prospectus. While it is expecled that the assets of the
collective investment schemes will generally be valued by an independent third party administrator of other
service provider, there may be circumstances in which certain securties or other assets of a collective
investment scheme may not have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager
of the relevart collective investment scheme may be required to value such securities or instruments,

The Fund has no sigrificant exposure to ather price nsk

Currency, interest rate and cther price rigks are managed by the Master Sub-Fund's Investment Adviser as
part of the integrated market risk management processes described above.

{b) Liquidity Risk

Ligquicty risk i the nisk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligabons associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash ar another financial asset. Amang other things, liguedity could be
impaired by an inability to access secured andior unsecured sources of financing, an inability to sell assets or
unforeseen ocufflows of cash or collateral. This situation may arise due to circumstances outside of the Fund's
contrel, such as a general market disrupbion or an operational problem affecting the Fund or third parties.
Also, the ability to sell assets may be impaired if other market participants are seeking to sell similar assets at
the same time.

The Fund's investment in the Master Sub-Fund may impose greater restrictions on redemptions than those
impasad by the Fund. This includes offering less frequent redemption dates than are offered by the Fund to
its unstholders,

The Fund provides for the subscription and redempticn of Units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk
associated with Unitholder redemptiong in accordance with the terms in the prospectus. The Fund is
managed to include liquid investments which the Investment Adviser believes are sufficient to meet normal
ligquidity needs although substantial redemptions of Units in the Fund could require the Fund to liquidate their
inmvestments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the redemptiors and changes in
the liquidity of the Fund's underlying imvestments once acquired can adversely impact its position in this
respect, These factors could adversely affect the value of the Units redeemned, the valuation of the Units that
remain autstanding and the liquidity of the Fund's remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to
meet redemptions,

The Fund's prospectus provides for the dailly subscription of Units and the daily redemption of Units. The
Furd iz therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting Unitholder redemplions.

As at 31 December 2018 the Fund's investment in the Master Sub-Fund is 1.27% of the Master Sub-Fund's
net assets (as at 31 December 2017: 1.08%),

24

116/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs USS Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk {continued)
The following tables set forth details of Unithclders with holdings greater than 10% of the Fund's net assets.

Goldman Sachs USS Fund

31-Dec-2018 31-Dec-2017

Unitholder 1° 36.71% Unithalder 1' 38 .59%
Unitholder 2' 24.59% Unithalder 2' 21.20%
Unitholder 3' 19.10% Unitholder 3" 19.00%
Other Unitholders” 19.60% Other Unitholders' 2 249%
Tatal 100.00% Total 100.00°%

"Unitholder is a Distributor.

Mote: Unitholders are shown in order of holding at the specific period end =0 Unitholder 1 on 31 December
2018 may not be the same as Unitholder 1 on 31 December 2017

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, all financial liabilities were payable within three months of
year end.

{c) Credit Risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the nisk that one party to a financial imvestmert will cause a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Frocedures have been adopted to reduce credit nisk related to its dealings with counterparties. Before
transacting with any counterparty, the Irvestment Adviser or its related parties evaluate both credit-
worthiness and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, their business and reputation. The
credit risk of approved counterparties is then monitored on an ongoing basis, including pericdic reviews of
financial statements and interim financial reports as needed.

The Fund and the Master Sub-Fund in which it invests are subject to a number of risks relating to the
inzohvency, administration, liquidation or other formal protection from creditors (“insolvency™) of the
Depositary. These risks include without limitation:

(il The loss of all cash held with the Depositary which is not being treated as cliert money at the level of the
Depositary ("client money”)

(i) The loss of all cash which the Depositary has failed to treat as client monsy in accordance with
procedures (if any) agreed with the Trust

(i) The loss of some or all of any securittes held on trust which have not been properly segregated ard so
identified at the level of the Depositary (“trust assets") or client money held by or with the Depositany.

(W) The loss of some or all assets due to the incorrect operation of accounts by the Depositary or due to the
process of identifying and transferring the relevant trust assets andfor client money including any
deduction to meet the administrative costs of an insalvancy,

(V) Losses caused by prolonged delays in recelving transfers of balances and regaining control over the
relevant assets.

An insolvency could cause severe disruption to the Fund's irvestment activity. In some circumstances, this
could cause the directors of the Manager to tempararily suspend the calculation of the Net Asset Value and
dealings in Units.
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
() Credit Risk (continued)

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the following financial assets were exposed o credt risk:
irvestments in collective investment schemes and other receivables. The carrying amount of financial assets
best reflect the maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date.

The maximum expasure to credt nsk as at the reporting date can be analysed as follows:

Goldman Sachs USS Fund 31-Dec-2018 31-Dec-2017
Assets _ uss uss
Collective investment schemes 454 352 163 478 680 552
Ircomme recavable 917 642 501,413
Cther assels - 47 429
Total Assets 455 269 805 479,319,794

The table below sets forth concentrations of counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of the net
assets attributable to halders of Redeemable Participating units at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017,

Goldman Sachs USS Fund 31-Dec-2018 31-Dec-2017
Institution Capacity % of Net Assets Y of Het Assets
Goldman  Sache US3 Treasury Liguid Collective
Reserves Fund Investment
— X Diistribution Class' Scheme £ B =
Goeldman Sachs USS Liquid Reserves Fund Callective
— X Distnibution Class Investment
Schame - 890 96

'Related Party to Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland) Funds
{d) Additional Risks

(1) Cancentration Risk

The Fund may invest in a limited number of investments and irnvestment themes, A consequence of a limited
rumber of investments is that performance may be more favourably or unfavourably affected by the
performance of an individual investment,

{ii) Operational Rigk

Cperational rigk iz the potential for loss caused by a deficiency in information, communications, trarsaction
processing and seftiement, and accounting systems. The Trust's senice providers, including sub-custodians
and as shown on page 2, maintain controls and procedures for the purpose of managing operational risk.
Reviews of the service levels of service providers are performed on a regular basis by the Imvestment
Adwviger, No assurance is given that these measures will be 100% effective.

(i) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and reguiatory changes could occur dunng the duration of the Trust which may adversely affect
the Trust

With respect to tax, the Trust may be subject to taxation on capital gains, interest and dividends in certain
jurisdictions where the Trust invests,
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(d) Additional Risks (continued)

{iiiy Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks (continued)

The interpretation and applicability of the tax law and regulations by tax authorities at times may not be clear
or consistent, Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as liabilities. However, some tax
abligations are subject to uncertainty and may result in additional t2x liabilities, interest and penalties based
an future actions, interpretations o judgements of these authorities covering current and past tax positions,
Accounting standards may also change, creating or remaving an abligation for the Trust to accrue for a
patential tax liability. Consequently, it is possible that certain patential tax obligations which currently are not
probable may become so which may result in additional tax liabilties for a Fund in the future and these
additional liabilties may be material. Because of the foregaing uncertainties, the NAV may not reflect the tax
liabilities ultimately borme by the Trust, including at the time of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges
af interests in the Trust, which could have an adverse impact on investors at that ime

Additional details of risks not disclesed in these Financial Statements can be found in the prospectus.
12. Cash and Bank Overdraft

There was no Cash or Bank overdraft held as at 31 Decermnber 2018 and 31 December 2017,
13. Cash Flow Statement

The Trust has elected to apply the exemption available to open-ended investment funds under FRS3 102,
Section 7 "Statement of Cash Flows", nat to prepare a cash flow staterment

14. Statement of Changes in the Portfolio

The Material Portfolio Changes reflect the agaregate purchases of a security exceeding one per cent of the
tatal value of purchases for the period and aggregate disposals greater than one per cent of the total value of
the sales. The Material Portfolio changes are shown on page 29

15. Soft Commissions

The Fund did not enter into any third party soft commission arrangements or pay commissions for research
andior execution for the year ended 31 Decernber 2018 and 31 December 2017,

16. Prospectus

The latest prospectus of the Trust was issued on 28 September 2018
17. Contingent Liabilities

There were no contingent labilities as at 21 December 2018 and 31 Decamber 2017,
18. Significant Events during the year

Mr. Michael Holmes was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 12 Jaruary
2018,

Mz, Sheila Patel was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 8 Fabruary
2018,

Ms. Jackie O'Connor was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 1 August
208

Mr. Hugo Macheill was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Mew Manager as of 10
August 2018
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18. Significant Events during the year (continued)

The |atest prespectus of the Trust was issued on 28 September 2018 to make a number of changes to the
Furid,

1. A change to the investment objective and policy of the Fund so that it invests at least 90% (and up to
100%&) of its net assets in Goldman Sachs LSS Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund (instead of at least 90% (and
up to 100%) of its net assets in Goldman Sachs USS Liguid Reserves Fund).

2. Reduction of the limit on the total annual fees and expenses due by the Fund from 0.85% to 0.7 0%.

3, Amendmernt of the valuation point of the Fund from 9:00pm (Irsh time) to 3.00pm (New York time) for
cansistancy with the valuation point of the Mew Master Sub-Fund,

4. Change of the name of both the Trust and the Fund to Goldman Sachs Unit Trust {Ireland) and Goldman
Sachs USS Fund, respectively.

There were no other significant events affecting the Trust up to the date of approval of the financial
staterments,

18. Subsequent Events
The Trust terminated the appointment of Goldman Sachs Asset Management Global Services Limited as its
Manager and appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited ("GSAMFSL") as its new
Manager on 28 February 2019, The Trust also terminated the appeintment of Goldman Sachs International
asz the Distributor on 28 Februany 2019, GSAMFSL acte ag Destributor of the Trust with effect from 28
February 2015,

There were no ather subsequent events affecting the Trust up to the date of approval of the financial
statements.

20. Indemnifications
The Manager may enter into contracts on behalf of the Trust that contain a varnety of indemnifications. The
Trust's maximum exposure under these arangements is unknown. However, the Truest has not had prior
claims or losses pursuant to these contracts.

21. Approval of the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the New Manager approved the audited financial statements on 12 Apeil 2018
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i

L]

&

Fair Y of
Value Net
Heldings Deseription Yield"™ Uss Assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official
exchange listing or traded on a regulated
market
UCITS COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT SCHEMES
454 352 163 Goldman Sachs USE Treasury Ligluid Resenes
Fund - X Distribution Class ™ ! 273% 454 352 163 9.8
TOTAL UCITS COLLECTIVE INWVESTMENT
SCHEMES 454,352 163 59.89
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - LONG 454,352 163 89,89
Total Investments
LICITS Collective Investment Schemes 454 352 163 99 89
Other assets and llabilities ABE 844 041
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 454 841 007 10:0.00

The interest rate shown for the Goldman Sachs LSS Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund represents the yield
effective as at 31 December 2018

Redated party to Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Iretand),

The Fund is invested in the non-Investment Advisery fee bearing share class of the Goldman Sachs USS
Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund,

Fund iz domiciled in Ireland.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31
37,156,101,918 4,155,910,000
191,381 21,406
41,530 4,645
26,313,421 2,943,156
635,852 71,120
5,186 580
37,183,289,288 4,158,950,907
1,152,464 128,903
61,623,435 6,892,581
1,270,994,785 142,160,767
5,577,152 623,804
288,955 32,320
185,487 20,747
263,082 29,426
150,786 16,865
97,750 10,933
16,250 1,818
15,672 1,753
16,566 1,853
44,942 5,027
22,021 2,463
273,934 30,640
1,340,723,281 149,959,899
35,842,566,007 4,008,991,008

2019 11
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2017 12 31

2017 12 31
26,780,732,107 2,995,424 ,886
834,298 93,316
2,653,268,353 296,768,065
52,372,176 5,857,828
28,517,642 3,189,698
514,000 57,491
29,516,238,576 3,301,391,285
52,320,526 5,852,051
670,940 75,045
25,500,215 2,852,199
131,722,134 14,733,121
4,855,208 543,055
247,294 27,660
163,953 18,338
227,018 25,392
202,547 22,655
92,815 10,381
16,288 1,822
10,562 1,181
11,953 1,337
113,991 12,750
23,710 2,652
70,215 7,854
216,249,369 24,187,492
29,299,989,207 3,277,203,793
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31
308,347,838 34,488,706
268,465,010 30,027,811

NAV

576,812,848 64,516,517
19,220,814 2,149,848
56,233,346 6,289,700
2,918,738 326,461
1,002,031 112,077
1,620,039 181,201
2,236,946 250,202
203,740 22,788
17,110 1,914
16,765 1,875
22,640 2,532
160,742 17,979
29,681 3,320
339,320 37,953
64,801,098 7,248,003
(6,099,385) (682,216)
58,701,713 6,565,787
498,890,321 55,800,882
(497,201,865) (55,612,029)
(497,201,865) (55,612,029)
1,688,456 188,854
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2017 12 31

2017 12 31
231,927,297 25,941,068
100,268,933 11,215,080

NAV
332,196,230 37,156,148

75,484,985 8,442,996
55,435,738 6,200,487
2,835,795 317,184
974,223 108,967
1,449,659 162,144
2,232,794 249,738
199,240 22,285
18,056 2,020
12,169 1,361
25,143 2,812
79,763 8,921
46,732 5,227
254,615 28,479
63,563,927 7,109,625
(5,761,722) (644,449)
57,802,205 6,465,177
198,909,040 22,247,976
(197,711,202) (22,113,998)
(197,711,202) (22,113,998)
1,197,838 133,978

125/258



NAV

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31

2018 12 31
29,299,989, 207 3,277,203,793
341,267,318,575 38,170,749,583
(334,726,430,231) (37,439,151,221)
1,688,456 188,854
6,542,576,800 731,787,215
35,842,566,007 4,008,991,008
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2017 12 31

2017 12 31
38,502,648,381 4,306,521,221
294,083,524,378 32,893,242,202
(303,287,381,390) (33,922,693,608)
1,197,838 133,978
(9,202,659,174) (1,029,317,429)
29,299,989, 207 3,277,203,793
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2018 12 31

(@ (b)
79,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.340% 24/01/2019 78,881,895 0.22
55,300,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.360% 29/01/2019 55,198,494 0.15
580,890,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.388% 05/02/2019 579,541,335 1.62
17,640,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.370% 12/02/2019 17,591,225 0.05
322,836,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.256% 14/02/2019 321,945,675 0.90
1,910,550,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.375% 19/02/2019 1,904,373,834 5.31
855,100,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.27T% 21/02/2019 852,341,954 2.38
691,600,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.388% 04/04/2019 687,332,823 1.92
103,400,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.394% 11/04/2019 102,712,424 0.29
6,200,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.450% 02/05/2019 6,148,945 0.02
19,300,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.460% 23/05/2019 19,112,726 0.05
461,500,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.475% 30/05/2019 456,772,509 1.27
645,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.495% 06/06/2019 638,026,476 1.78
1,000,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.480% 13/06/2019 988,771,109 2.76
2,052,170,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.485% 20/06/2019 2,028,089,910 5.66
1,832,830,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.480% 27/06/2019 1,810,483,547 5.05
1,000,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 2.478% 05/07/2019 987,266,250 2.75
1,222,500,000 United States Treasury Floating Rate Note 2.374% 31/01/2019 1,222,699,756 3.41
1,146,300,000 United States Treasury Floating Rate Note 2.370% 30/04/2019 1,146,793,829 3.20
1,275,400,000 United States Treasury Floating Rate Note 2.379% 31/07/2019 1,276,230,003 3.56
1,210,100,000 United States Treasury Floating Rate Note 2.392% 31/10/2019 1,210,969,264 3.38
7,000,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.387% 31/01/2019 6,994,826 0.02
1,300,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.403% 31/01/2019 1,298,751 0.00
16,900,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.351% 31/01/2019 16,882,728 0.05
19,200,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.523% 31/05/2019 19,088,162 0.05
124,400,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.567% 30/06/2019 123,580,790 0.35
163,100,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.576% 30/06/2019 162,324,641 0.45
125,200,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.557% 15/07/2019 123,974,483 0.35
63,100,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.581% 15/08/2019 62,374,695 0.17
82,800,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.658% 15/08/2019 83,302,758 0.23
29,600,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.661% 30/09/2019 29,396,370 0.08
17,020,502,187 47.48
17,020,502,187 47.48
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2018 12 31

@ (b)
550,000,000 Bank of Nova Scotia Repo(c) 2.950% 02/01/2019 550,000,000 1.53
1,500,000,000 Bank of Nova Scotia Repo(®) 2.950% 02/01/2019 1,500,000,000 4.18
350,000,000 Barclays Capital Inc Repo(c) 2.950% 02/01/2019 350,000,000 0.98
1,700,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(®) 3.000% 02/01/2019 1,700,000,000 4.74
100,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(c) 2.950% 02/01/2019 100,000,000 0.28
1,300,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(®) 3.000% 02/01/2019 1,300,000,000 3.63
1,113,500,000 BNP Paribas Repo(c) 2.950% 02/01/2019 1,113,500,000 3.11
200,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(c) 2.400% 27/02/2019 200,000,000 0.56
400,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(c) 2.950% 02/01/2019 400,000,000 1.12
1,850,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(®) 2.970% 07/01/2019 1,850,000,000 5.16
1,300,000,000 Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce Repo(c) 2.950% 02/01/2019 1,300,000,000 3.63
48,450,000 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(d) 2.750% 02/01/2019 48,450,000 0.13
265,649,731 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(® 2.750% 02/01/2019 265,649,731 0.74
185,900,000 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(® 2.750% 02/01/2019 185,900,000 0.52
588,500,000 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(©) 3.000% 02/01/2019 588,500,000 1.64
750,000,000 Deutsche Bank Securities Repo(©) 2.900% 02/01/2019 750,000,000 2.09
2,150,000,000 HSBC Securities (USA) Inc Repo(®) 2.950% 02/01/2019 2,150,000,000 6.00
100,000,000 Merrill Lynch Pierce Repo(®) 2.950% 02/01/2019 100,000,000 0.28
158,100,000 Merrill Lynch Pierce Repo(®) 2.950% 02/01/2019 158,100,000 0.44
500,000,000 MUFG Securities (Canada) Ltd Repo(c) 2.420% 02/01/2019 500,000,000 1.39
2,200,000,000 MUFG Securities (Canada) Ltd Repo(c) 3.000% 02/01/2019 2,200,000,000 6.14
250,000,000 MUFG Securities (Canada) Ltd Repo(©) 2.480% 03/01/2019 250,000,000 0.70
1,000,000,000 Nomura Securities Repo() 2.950% 02/01/2019 1,000,000,000 2.79
1,200,000,000 Wells Fargo Securities LLC Repo(©®) 3.000% 02/01/2019 1,200,000,000 3.35
375,500,000 Wells Fargo Securities LLC Repo(c) 3.000% 02/01/2019 375,500,000 1.05
20,135,599,731 56.18
20,135,599,731 56.18
37,156,101,918 103.66
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2018 12 31 2018 12 31 2017 12 31 2017 12 31
17,020,502, 187 47.48 15,721,432,107 53.66
20,135,599, 731 56.18 11,059,300,000 37.75
(1,313,535,911) (3.66) 2,519,257,100 8.59
35,842,566,007 100.00 29,299,989 ,207 100.00

(b)
©
©)

360

130/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
354,996 39,706
419 47
354,578 39,660
35,457,752,906
0.01 1.1185

131/258



50

14

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

43

132/258



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€))
1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000 2019
2,500 28 249 25,000,002

2018 20
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2018 20

2011 61
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3 820,811,482
3 1,056,983,822
2 682,690,341
9 978,210,437
1 409,493,070
2 8,834,103,659
3 16,140,011,943
2 1,026,242,221

10 83,380,431,969

10 2,166,050,199
7 6,814,899,327
2 57,822,025
2 1,531,906,801
1 1,612,486,537

67 51,618,082,247
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23 103
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Ireland
2019 26
111.85
2019 28
131
23 103

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

2019 26
111.85
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31
25,000 2,796,250
25,000 2,796,250
25,000 2,796,250
25,000 2,796,250

2019 12
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2018 12 31 41
2018 20
25,000 2,796,250 25,000 2,796,250
2018 12 31 25,000 2,796,250 25,000 2,796,250
2018
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2018 12 31
47-49
10282 200
www . goldmansachs.com/shareholders
101
101 2014
101 |
45(b) 46 52
13 91 99
15 110 113(a) 114 115
119(a) (©) 120 127 129
9@ )
38
10(F) 16 40
30 31
24 17
24
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2018 12 31
2018 12 31
100,000,000,000 100,000,000
100,000,000,000 114,496,000
25,000,000 25,000
2
25,000
2018 12 19
25,000,000
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
psat M December 2018
31 December 2015
Mote 1'55" 000
CURRENT ASSELS
Dezbiors: Amounts due from group undertakings 7 25,000
NETCUHKENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS T 35000
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capiral L 25 00k
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER™S FUNDS 15,000

The campany eaned no income, nor incurred any expenses, in respect of the fimetions it performed for the pzriod and
thereliore no profit =and loss aceowst o separats statement of other comprebensive incume has boen presented.

The financial staiements were appraved by the Board of Direstors on 12 April 20019 und signed on its bebalf by

Cillenn Tharpe Jacqueline O Connar

Divector [Hrectur

The wecompanying notes arc an imegral part af these financial statements,
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

Ay THANGE L

Called up share  Tatal sharcholder’s

capital T
158000 Irss7nan

Balamee at 20 March 2018
Tssie o] shares 25 000 25,000
Balanece at 3 December 2018 25,000 25,000

Mo dividends wers paid in 2013.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial siarements.
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GDLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOVTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 31

GENERAL INFORMATION

The company is a privare fimited company and is incorporated and demiciled in Ircland. The sddress of s
registered office is 4749 51, Stephen’s Cireee, Dublin 2, Treland,

Une immadiats parent undectaking is Goldman Sachs Asset Management Intemational Holdings LL.C.. 3 company
incurpurnted and domicibed in the Lnited States of America.

The ulimale parsnt undecinking and (he parent company of the smallest ond largest group for which consolidnated
financial ststemenis are prepared s The Goldman Sachs Group, Inw., a company incorporsled in the United States
of America. Coples of it consolidated financial statements can be ohmined from Tnvestor Relations, 200 West
Stroet, Wew York, NY 10282, Unilesd States of America, or al vww.poldmansachs, comishareholders,
ACCOUNTING FOLICTES

4. Basic of preparation

Ihe company prepares financial stafements under Trsh Generally Accepted Accounting Practices {Ioish
GAAF),

‘Ihese financial statements have heen prepared on the gning onncern hasis, under the historical cost convention,
and in wecordance wilth Financial Reporling Standard 101 Heduced Discloguee Framéwork (FHS 101) and Irigh
Taw, includmg the Companies Act 2014,

The fallowing excrnpiions [rony the disclosure reguircments of Inernational Financisl Reporting Standards
{IFRS) as adopted by the E.LL have boon applicd in the proparstion of these tinencial slatements in accordance
with RS 101:

{iy  IFRS 2 ~Share-based Payment” paragraph 43(b] and 46 o 52 These disclosures are provided in the
comsulidated [inancial statements of Group luc.;

iy LS 7 *Firancial Tnscrunsents: Disclosures”;
{miy  IFRS i3 “Fair Value Mcasurcment” paragraphs 91-99;

{iv)  IFRS 15 *Revene from Contruets with Cuslomers” seeond séntence of puragraph 110 and pursgraphs
L13gap, 114, 115, 118, LIa) e ie), |20 ta |27 and 129,

(v} 1AS | 'Prescatation of Financial Statements’ paragraph 38 (o present compandive infomoslion in nespect
of IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Stmements” paragraph 79{al{iv:

{viv  TAS | ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraphs LO{1}, 16, and 40A-D;

[vii} TAS 7 'Starcment of Cash Flows';

(viii) TAS B *Accounting Polizics, Changes in Avcounting Lstimates and Lrrors® paragraphs 30 and 31;
{ix) [AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ paragraph 17; and

(xy  1AS 24 ‘Related Party Thisclosures® requicements to disclose mansactions with companies also wholly
wwned within UGS Group.
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GCOLDMAN SACTIS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

CIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECE

I, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED
L. Dividends

Final equity dividends are recognised as o lisbility and deducied from equity in the period in which the
dividends are approvid by the company s sharehalder. Interim equity dividends are recognised und deducted
from cquity when paid.

c. Fareign currcncies

The company”s financial starements are preseated in LS. dollars, which s alsy (he company’s fumetional
CUTTBNCY.

Tramsactions denninsted in foreign comencies areé rnslated inlo LS. dollars ol raies of exchange ruling on
the date the trapsaction occucred. Monetary mssels and linbilitics denominated in foreipn currencies are
translated into U8, Jellars of rates of exchange ruling at the halanee sheet dae. Foreign exchange guins and
Tocases are recngnised in the profit and koss necount.

d. Finaneiol aseets

{ip Recognition end derecognition

Financial assets are recognised wheo the company beoomcs party to the contractual provisions of the
insiruemenl.

A financial asset is derecognised when the conlrclual rights to the cash flows from the financial asser
expire o il the company transfers the financial asset and sither a) substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership, or k) neither rransfers nor seiains substangadly oll the risk snd rewards of nwnership and the
company does nol retain conteol of teat fnancial asscl

(i} Classalicativn and measurement

The company classifies its financial assets a5 financial assets mepsured ot armorlised cost on the basis of
both the company™s business model for munnging financial asscts and rthe comtracual cash flow
charscteristics of the linancial ssscts. The busincss madel reflecss how the company manages particular
groups of asscts in order to generate future cash flows. Where the busivess modul s w hold the assets to
collect contractuel cash [lows, the compuny subscquendly mssrsses whether the cash flows represent solely
paxments of principal and interest.

Vingncial sssels Lhut are held for the collection of conactual cash flows and bave cash flows tha
represenl solely payments of poncipal and iwerest are measured av amortised cust, unkss they e
designated 2t fair value through profit or loss, Ui company considers whether the cath flavws reprasent
basic leoding arcangements and where contractual termis introduce expasure to risk or solatilioy
inconsistent with a basic lending arangement the financial asset is classificd and mcasured o fair value
theough peolil or loss,

Financial assets at anwmised cost are initially measured a1 fair velue plos ransaction costs and
subseuently #l amortisvd cosl using the effective imtorest method. The effective interest method 13 2
methad of caleulating the mmortised cost of a financial instrument and allocaring the inlerest income over
the ralavane peried, “The effective inerest rate s the mle tha exavlly discounts estimated fiure cash
receipls through the expected life of the financial asset o, when appropriate. a shoeler period to the net
carrying amaunt af the fnancial asset, Wihen caloulating the effewive interest rae, the company extimatas
cash flows <onskiering all cootrsciual ferms of the Anapcial asset hut does not consider fumre credit
hugses, All Bnante income is recogmised i the profit and lnss accouis

=10 =
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

MOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial stateinens requires menagemonl lo make judgements, sstimates and assumptions that
llect the amounts recogniscd in thess financinl statements. The panire of eslimation mueans (hat actoal cutcomes
could differ froom those estiniates. In the opinion of mansgement, there were wo judgements made that had a
significam <Mfeel on amouwnls recognised in the financial satements.

AUMTORS' REMUNERATION

Auditors” remuneration for the curment peried of €2,000 (incloding expenses and excluding VAT) relaie 1o the audit
of the entity finoncial statements and has been bome by o group underiaking. The statutory auditors did not receive
remunemtion for any oter services, including ciber sssuerance services, ax advisory services and other noa-audit
SETVILLS.,

STAFF COSTS

Druring the pericd emded 31 December 2018, all persans invalved in the company's aperitions weee employed by
wroup undertakings and no costs were horme by the company.

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

The directurs did aul reccive any remuneration from the company in the current pericd and oo conlnbuidons were
made by the company under defined benefil or delined contribution pension schemes.

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS DUL FROM GROLUP UNDERTAKINGS

Deblurs, sl ol which are dus within ane veur of the halance shest dme, comprizs of amuunls duc from groop
undertakings, The company hog developsd and tesied sn imparment mode] that coanplies with the key
requirements of IFRY 9 *Financial Insrumsents’, The cesults calevlated by the model were nol material and
therefure the company has not recorded any credit Insses,

SHARE CAPITAIL
31 Deetmber 2014
“a, L5500
Anthorised
Ordinary shares of U551 ench B0 000,000,000 140, 0G0 D00
Orecdinary shares ol €1 ench [0 0T 50 0 114,456 0H)
Allotted. called wp and fully paid
Ordinary shires of U531 each 25, (WD 00 25, (8M)
Ordinary shares o €1 ench 2 =
25,000

O 19 December 2018, the company issued 25000000 vnlinary shares of USS1 ot par to Goldman Sachs Assel
Management Ineernational Holdings L.L.C., the immediate parent undertaling,

«]1=
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2018

% FINANCIAL COMMITMENTDS AND CONTINGENCLES

The company had po financial commitments or contingencies outstanding at period end.

-12-
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2018 12 31
2019 24
2019 28
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

2018 15

2018 12 31 698.7

14.6
2017 12 31 15.2
131.4 2017 12 31 70.2
1,795 2017 12 31 1,684
2018 12 31 1,774 2017 12 31 1,802
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1.2743 2017 12 31
1.3297 2017 12 31
12
2019 28
13
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2019 24
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2006
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2017 12 31
2006 487 (2)
2019 29
2019 29
2018 12
2018 2019 29

2018 2019 29
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2006

2019 24
2019 28
2019 23
43.2

2019 23

2019 24
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
723,024 80,870,234 23,657 2,646,035
1,585 177,282 1,090 121,917
(709,999)  (79,413,388) (9,597) (1,073,424)
14,610 1,634,129 15,150 1,694,528
(2,783) (311,279) (2.,898) (324,141)
11,827 1,322,850 12,252 1,370,386
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
43,933 4,913,906 34,920 3,905,802
87,463 9,782,737 35,233 3,940,811
131,396 14,696,643 70,153 7,846,613
10 (63,149) (7,063,216) (13,733) (1,536,036)
68,247 7,633,427 56,420 6,310,577
11 25,000 2,796,250 25,000 2,796,250
43,247 4,837,177 31,420 3,514,327
68,247 7,633,427 56,420 6,310,577

2019 23
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2018 12 31
2017 25,000 2,796,250 19,168 2,143,941 44,168 4,940,191
12,252 1,370,386 12,252 1,370,386
2017 12 31 25,000 2,796,250 31,420 3,514,327 56,420 6,310,577
11,827 1,322,850 11,827 1,322,850
2018 12 31 25,000 2,796,250 43,247 4,837,177 68,247 7,633,427

2018 2017
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
664 33
921 1,057
1,585 1,090
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
9,837 9,619
669,373
29,359
1,410 42)
20 20
709,999 9,597
2018 12 31

160/258



2006

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
230 161
2
232 161
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19 2017 19.25
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

14,610 15,150

2017 19.25 2 776 2 016
@) 11)

9 Q)

2,783 2,898

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
56,428 2,178
31,013 33,055
22
87,463 35,233

2017 12 31 25.2

2063 31
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10
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
52,659 6,709
7,529 7,024
2,848
113
63,149 13,733
11
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
25,000,000 25,000 25,000,000 25,000
25,000 25,000
12
2017 12 31
13
2018 2017

2018 12 31 68.2 2017 12 31 56.4
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2017 0.1
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131.4 2017 12 31 70.2
63.0 2017 12 31 13.7

15
2019 24
2019 28
2019 23 43.2

165/258



EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

STRATEGIC REFORT

“The dircciors presant their steategic report for dve vear ended 31 Decensber 215,
1. Intradaction

Cioldman Sachs Asset Manngement Glubal Services Limited (the company} i3 an allernative investnient fund manasger
LALFM] and managetoent cemmpany that operates In the Eurapean Union (B.U.1L The campany sub-delegares provision
ul ceraiiy servicos, such a3 distibution and ponifolio management, to other serviee providers incleding fellow group
undertakings.

The company is awthorised and regulated by the Financial Conducr Authurity (FUA )L

On 24 lanuary 2019, the dirsviors approved ducuments terminating the company's exisiing managemen! company
agreaments by the funds. The termination of these agreements took pliee on 24 Februwy 2019, As a result the
crnpany s fund management husiness aotivities coased wnd these fiund management sctivities are now undertaken by
Goldman Sachs Assct Managemenl Fund Services Limired, a fillow group undcrtaking. domiciled in [relsnd. 1he
directors do nol cxpect tha the company will undenake any new business scivities, and thersfore, the dircetors intend
ta pust the company ioo liguidation as deuiled in note 4 below,

The company’s ultimate parem underabing snd controlling eatity is ‘Tt Qoldman Sachs Group. Ine. {Group Inc.).
Cieonsp Ine. &5 2 bank holding company and @ financial hulding comnpany regulaed by the Board of Govemars of the
Fadersl Reserve Syilem, Tn reladion Lo the company, "group nndertsking’ msios Groap Inc. of sny oF itz subsidiaries,
Graup Inc., logether with its consolidazed subsidiaries, form ‘08 Cirgup’, GS Chronip is 4 leading global imvestinent
banking, securitics and investment mapagement firm that provides o wide range of financial services to a sabstangsl
Akl diversified cliem base that includes corporations, linancial institulions, poveraments and individuals

The compuny primarlly operates in a LS, dollar envirenment a8 part of G Utoup. Accordingly, the sompany's
funclivnal currency is the U5, dollar und thass finno. il statementss have hesan prepurcd In that currency.

2. Finangial evervicew

I'hie Financial stztements have hesn drown up for the vear ended 31 Decsmber 2013, Cemnparalive informafion has been
presented for the vear ended 31 Decembier 2017.

The company adapied [FRS 15 “Revenus from Cotracts with £ ustomers” from [ Jonuary 2018 and as a resull has
prospectively presunied revenues and expenses wssoriated vwith srmangenients where it is principal t providing services
but ultimutely sub-delegnies the provision ef these services, such as distribuion and porifolio mandgement, on A gross
Barsis. resulting in an increase in both turnover and sdministrative expenses by USSG9% 7 milllon fur the wear eoded 31
December 20 in cumzparisnn 1o the company's past presentation.

The resulis for the vear arc shown in the profit and loss sccount on page % Profit belore tavation was U5%14,6 million
(3] December 2017: USS15.2 milliva),

The company had total assels ol U9%131.4 million (31 December 2007 USST0.2 mition ).

Average Assets Under Management (ALM) during the vear were 155179.5 billion (31 Deeomber 2017: LSS IS8 4
billion). AUM at 31 Decersber 2013 were LSST77.4 billion (A0 December 2007: USSI20.2 billlon).

3. Fxchange rate

The British poundU.S. dollar exchange rate at the balance sheel date was £51.2743 (31 Devember 2077: £51 A5,
The average rafe lor the vear was £51.3297 {31 December 207 £31.3000).
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {eontinmed)

4 Future outinok and going concern
The company's cxisting management company agrecments with the lunds have been tecminated and the dirceiors do
mot expeul that the counpany will undermake any now husiness sciivity. Az a resull, the directars intend 1o put the
company into ligulditiva within twelve months of the date ol approval of the linancial stements. Accordingly, the
going concern busis of preparion is oot appropriaste wnd the fnancinl sislements have been prepared on a basis wther
that gaing concarn, 1lere is no impact on the company®s balance sheer and profit and loss sceount 1s g result of this
basis of preparation.

5. Principal Fisks aedd uncertaintics
The direciars consider that the mast impartant componcnts of the company”s financial risk are market risk, credit rigk
and liquidily risk. Fallowing the termination of the eampany’s existing managemenl company agreements on 38
Febeuary 2019, che direciors consider that these risks have been substantially rediced. The company, as pant of a global

group, adheces to yiobal risk musugement policies and procedures. The company®s rizk managcment objeclives and
paolicies are descsibed in note 13 of the financial ststcments.

G Date of aulhurisation af issue
The steateyie repart was aulhorised for issue by the Board of Dircelars on 2% April 2019,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

w
D, T. Jackson

Secretary

24 apeil 2019
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their reporl and the andited fimuncial statements lor the vear endedd 31 December 2018,

Introduction

In sccordance with scction 4144 of the Companies Act 2006, the direclors have prepared u strategic report, which
contains a review of the company's busiiesses snd a description of the principal risks and uncertaintics facing the
eommpany. The direciors hive chosen to make reforence 1o the fulure outlook of the campany in the stratele repott n
necordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006. The company s risk managetnen objectives and policies,
including exposures to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk are described in note 14 10 the financial slatcments,
Dividends

The diréclors do not recommend the payment of s dividend in the year (3] Decamber 2007: L'S5ndl),

Diselosire of information fo auditors

I the vase of each direclor in affice o the date the direciors® repart is approved:

*  Sofr a3 each of the directors 15 aware, there is no relevait audit information of which the company's suditors are
unavee and

= Each of the dircctors lus wkee 1l the steps that he/she ought te huve taken 05 8 dircetor to make himsel fherself
aware ol any relevant audit information and w establish that the company s Auditers are aware of that infarmation.

Independent auditors

The zuditors, PricewarerhouseCuoopers LLP, are deemed 1o be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Compznies Act
2008,

IMrvciurs

The directors of the company who served throughout the year and to the dale of this repon, except whare notesl, ware:

Name Appainted Resigaed

5. Davics (Chairperson) 19 March 2019
B. Healy 29 March X119
M. Holraes 12 January 2018

LA O Conner | Augusi 2008 29 March 2012
8. H. Patel 8 February 2018 29 Maorch 201%
G, R, Thorpe

Mo director had, ai the year and, any inerest requiring note hercin
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT {cuntinued)
[ % Statement of divecrors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic repon, directors’ report and the financial statecncrts in
accordance with spplicable law and regulations. Company law requires the direcrors 1o prepare finaneial siiements for
each linoncial perind which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs ol the company 7t the cnd of the financial
pericd and of tle profil or Joss of dee company for that perind, o prepuring those financial sistemants, the direciors are
required .

*  Eelect soitable accounting policies and then upply them consistently:

d Mlake judgernents and eslimates that are reasonable and prudent:

= Smte whethor applicable accounting siandards have been followed subject 1o wny materinl depariures disclosed
and explained in the financial stalements: and

*  Trepare the finuncial statements on the going concern besis unless it is Inappropriaic (o presame that the cumpany
will continue in business,

The directors are respunsible for keeping suoyusts secouming re¢onds which disclose with reasomahle ACCULACY ul any
time the financial position of the <onipany und tn enable them 1o ensure that the finuncizl statements comply with the
Uompankes Act 2004, They are also respansible for salcguarding the asseis of the company and, hence, for taking
respnable seps for the prevention and detestivn ol Fraod and other ircgularities.

7 Post Balance Sheet Events

On 24 Tanuary 2019, the dircctors approved documents temminating the company's exlsling Management Cumpany
agreements by the funds. The termivation of those agreemenis ook place on 28 February 2009 As & result the
contpany’s fumd management bisincss activities ceased,

On 23 April 2019, the dirsetors declarcd an interim dividend of US343.2 million 10 Goldman Sachs Group 1K
Lirired, its imeocdiste parant undertaking.

g, Pare of antborisation of isne
I'he financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Uirectors un 23 Apeil 10149,

BY OKNER OF THE BOA KD

0. T. Jackson
Secretary

24 April 2019
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

foar ¢ 3 r 2
Year ended Yoeur ended
31 Devember 2008 31 December 2017
Noge _ USS'0d0 L5000
Turnover TH.024 23 657
Interest reocivable and similar incomea 4 1.585 1,0%)
Adminisirative expenses 5 (700,996 {5,307)
OPERATING PROFIT AND PROFUT BEFORE
TAXATION 14,0 15,150
Tax on profit B (2,7R3) (2898}
FROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAKR 11,827 11,252

The opurating profits of the company are derived from conlinuing sperstions in the current and priar vears,

The company bas na recogmiscd gains and lossus other than those included in the profit and loss aceount for lhe yoars shown
b weud therefisne no separate sivemment of comprelignsive income has been presentsd,

The sccampanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial siatements

7
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
42 a1 31 Decembir 2018
31 December 2008 31 December 2017
Note L&s 000 1'S5°006
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash at bank and in hand 43,933 34,920
Diehiors 9 £7.463 35,233
131,3%6 70,153
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR mo_ {63,149) {13,738
NET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS 65 247 56,420
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital i1 35,000 25000
Profit and loss ssount 43,247 L3 14zl‘.1
TUTAL SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS 68,247 6.4

The financial stazements were eppreved by the Board of Directors on 23 Apeil 2009 and signed un its hehalf by

Al e

0E. Hnlmes
Directar

The Bccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements,
Corpany number: 05814445
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

s TATEM 0Or VGES 1.
o nik

Called up share Profit and loss  Total sharcholder's

capital acconmnt s

LSS0 LUS5"000 LSS nin

Batlance at [ Janwary 2017 25, 00K 19,168 44,168
Prafit for the finaocial yoar & 12152 12,252
Balanee al 3} December 20017 23,000 31,420 56,420
Profit fisr the linancial vear 11,827 11,827

Fealance at 31 December 2018 25 004 3247 68247

™o dividends were paid in 2015 und 2007.

The accompanying notes are an inlcgral part of these financial siatements,

q
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

GENERAL INFORNMATION

The company is & privaie lmited company and is incorporared and damiciled in England and Wales. The address ol
its registered wllice it Peterborovgh Cour, 133 Fle21 Streel, Londen, LCAA 2BE. United Kingdom.

The company's immudinte parent yodertisking and the parent company of the smalles group lor which consoliduted
financial sialements are préparsd is Goldman Sachs Group TR Limited (GSG LK), 3 company incorporaled and
domiciled in England and Wales. Copies of its consalidaced foancial statemens e available on request frony the
Company Secretary, GSG UK, Petecburough Court, 133 Fleet Street. London EC4A 2H1, United Kingdom,

The ultimate controlling undertaking sad the parent compusy of the largest wroup for which consolidared finunial
staternents aec prepared is The Goldman Sachs Group, Tnc.. a compuny incorporated in the United States ul Amesrica,
LCopics of its consolidated financial stslements can he obtained from Tnvestor Relations, 200 West Streee, New Yurk,
MY 10282, Uniled States of Americs, G5 Group's principal place of business, or al www goldmansachs com
sharehulders.

TR lesam

The conipany is included in the vonsalidated Pillar 3 disclosures of GSG UK. st required by the L1, Capital
Requiremcnts Ragulation. GSG UK's Movember 2018 Dillar 5 disclosires will be made available in conjunetion witly
Ihe publication ofils consolidated finwncial information sl www.soldmansachs eomidiselosres

v-by-C nunerey | f
The company is included in the consnlidated counlry-by-country reporting disclosurcs of GSG UK. as required by
the Capital Requirements {Countiv-by-Comiry Reporing) Regulations 2003 G&G UK's November 2013 counlry-
bymcouary disclosures will be made availahle by 31 December 2019 al www_ galdmansschs comidisclosures.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a.  Hasis of preparation
These flaancial statements huve boen prepared un s basis ober thun going concern, under the historical cost

convention, and in sccondsnce with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Keduved Disclosure Framework (FRS
101) and the Companies Act 2006,

The following exemptions from the disclosure reguirements of loiermational Finsncetal Reporing Standard
(MBS} ms ndopted by the E.U. have been applicd in the prepanaion of these financial statements in accordance
with FRS 10|

1) IFRS I *Share-based Payment’ paragraph 3500y and 46 1o 52, These disvlosures are provided in the
cansalidated linancial statementy of Groug loc.;

{iip IERS 15 *Revenue from Cantracts with Custonters” second sentence of paragraph | 10 and paragraphs
F03gal, 174, 108, 118, 11%a) v (ch, 120 s 127 and 129

(il IAS | ‘Presentanion of Financial Stalemens' paragraph 15 40 pressnt comparative information in respect
ol 1AS | “Tresentation of Financial Staiemicnts” paragraphs 79 (2)iiv];

{ivk  TAS 1 "Prescotation of Vinuncial Statemems’ pomgraphs 1010, 16, and 40A-13;
] 1AS 7 "Srarement of Cash Flows';
tvi)  [AS 8 "Accounting Pollsies, Changes Jn Accounting Fstimates and Frrors® pursgraphs 30 gid 31;

[vit)  TAS 24 ‘Helsted Pamy Diselodures’ parcgraph 17; and
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Busis of preparvation {continugd)

gl [AS 24 ‘Relaied Party Dischusures’ roquirements 1o discloss ransactions wilh companics alss wholly
i within GS Chrowp,

b Coing concern

The company's existing managemant company apreements with the flads have heen terminasted and the
dircetors do not expect that the comnpumy will undertsbe sny nevw business activity, As o result, the direcion
intend 10 pul the company inlo liquidstion within twalve monihs of e dale of approval ol the financial
stalements. Aceardingly. the gning convem basis of preparalion is 1ot approgriate and the financial statements
have been preparcd on a hasis otber than gning concern. Thera [2 no impact nn the conpuny s halance sheet and
profit snd loss aceount us u result of this basés of preparation,

Changes in aceounting policies
: ‘Reve AP EES Wi mers’

Froni 1 Jenuary 2018, the company adopied IFRS 15 wnder the comulative elfeer transilion sppeoach. This
stumlard, as amended, provides comprehensive guidance on e recopnilion of revense camed from contrac
with custoaners arising fram the ransfor of goods und services, guidance on accounting for cenain contract costs
and new dischosores.

A% a result ol adopring this standard, the company has praspectively prosented revenucs ad BXPEnsEs Assnciated
with armnygements where il is principal 1 providing services but ultinasely sub-delegates the provision of tese
services, such as dismiborion and portfolin masagement, on @ gross basis, resulling in an increfise in both
turnaver and sdmintsritive expenses by USS698.7 million for the vear sndad 31 Decembar 2018 in comparison
o he company’s pasl presontation,

Refer o nutc 2(d) for further detail.
§ F i L

Fromm | January 2018 the company adopled IFRS @ ‘Finenvial Instruments’ (IFRS 91 as ssued by the TASD in
July 2004, The company did nod ewrly adapt I'HS 3 in previows periads.

As premitied by the rnsitonal provisions of [FRS 9, the company elecied nor to restate cumparative figures
The censequentinl wmendments to IFRS 7 disclosures have anly been sppliad in e curent year,

I aduption of L'RS @ has resulted in changes in the cumpany®s accounting policies for clwsification and
measurament ol finaocial assets apd fighilities and impainman of Ninuncial asseds — relir to note 200} fur farther
dezail,

St out beluw are disclosures relating o tle impact of the adoption of IFRS ¥ on the company:
(i) Classifieation and measnrement

The company purlomucd o detalled analysis of its business models for managing financial assats nnd, wheme
required, subscquent analysis of cash Mow charmeleristics on individual financial pasets,

There were no chunges to the carrving amount of Grancial assers as 4 result of the widopticn of TFRS 9, As at
| January 2018, the company had 175870h2 million of fnancial assets classificd as loans and reecivables
wider [AS 39 *Financial Instruments: Revognition and Muasurement’ (1A% 39} These [inancisl assets were
reclassified i measured at amoctized cost under IFRS 9

I
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued)

.

Charges in accounting pelicics (continued )
There were no chaniecs to the clasdlication and measurcment of financial Tiahilides,
(i) Trapairomemt

The company has develaped and tested an inpuirmen model that complies with the ey requirements of
TFRS 9. The resulis calculated by the medel were ot matesial and (hercfare the company has nol recorded
any eradit bosscs a a resuli of adupting IFKRY 9.

Revenue recognition

Frare 1 Junuary 2013, the company accounts for revenues camed from contracts with clieats far invesiment
managenient services under TFRS 15, As such, revenucs frony these services are recngnised when the
purlormance obligations related tw the underlying 1mnssctions are completed,

I asclditiom, from 1 January 20H 8, if the company is pringipal to the tnussction, die COmpany recogilises rovenoe
on cantracts with clicnts, gross ol cxpenses [ncurred to satisfy some or all of Jis performiance obligations, [ he
company 83 principal to the transaction il it has the primary obligation lo provide the service 1o the client. The
company satisfles the performance ehligation Ty itself, or by engaging other GS Group entities 1w satisfy some
of all of its perlormance obliguions on Itz behall, Such revenue is recognised in ternover and cxpenses lncurned
are peeognised in adioinistrative expenses. Prior 1o 1 Juneary 2008, revenue on conlescts with clienls weas
prosented nedof cortain expenses incurred o satisly some or all of the perfoemince obligations. Sec noee 2{c) for
further information aboui the adoption impoct of IFRS 15,

Tumnwver represenls manageimenl campany fees and revenyes nusociated wifl werAngements where it is principal
10 providing sorvices bt ultimaely sob-delogates provision of these servives, such a5 distribution and purllolio
mnnagement. 165 recognised on an scvruals hasis over the perfod thal the related service is rrovided.

Forelgn carrencics

The company’s Ninancial slalements are preseoted in U5, dollars, which is alw the comparny's functional
CUFFECY .

Transactions denominared in lurcign currencies are transtated into 105 dollass st rates of dxvhanga raling on the
date the tmnsaction oevurred. Monetary ussets and lbllitics denominsted in foreign curcncies are tramilated
Il L5, dollars i rates of exchange roling ar the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange paing und losses are
reengnised in operating peofil.

Dividends

Final cquity dividends wre recognised s o flghility wnd deducted from equity in the period in which the
dividends are spproved by the cuompany's shareholder. Tntesien cquity dividends we recognited and deducted
frou equity when paid.

Cash at bank and io hand

Cush at bank and in hand includes highly liquid overnight deposits held in the erdinzry enorge of business,
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

TE - E
-5 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continoed)

b. Financial assets and finanelal Labilities

(i} Recagmition and derecopnition

Financial assets and fisancial liabilities are recopriced when the company becomes party in the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

Financiul assets pre derecognised when the contractoal rights 1o the cash flows Fom the [nzneial asser
expire or if the compeny transfers the Gnancial assel and the transfr qualifies for derecogniton. A
tranuferred financial axset qualifies for derecogaition i the company transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset o does not retain control, Financial liahflites derecognised
only when they are exdingoished (ie. when tie obligation specified in the cotinct i discharged or
cancelled or éxpires),

{ii] Classification and measurement

Financial nssets comprise ali of the company's current assers and financial liahilities vomprise all ol U
company”s creditors.

From 1 Jaousry 2008 the company has adopred TPRS 9 and classifies Ginancial assers Into thanchal nsscts
measueed az anortised cost on the busis of both the company s business model for managing financial asssts
and the contraciual cash ficw charcteristics of the financial assets. The company’s business model s to
hold the asscts © collect contractual cash flows and the vash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, If (hese conditions were not met, the financial fssels wonld be mandsrorly mersured at fair
value through profit or loss,

Finsncial a3sets measured af umortised cost are initially measired af fuir value plus manssction costs and
subsequently st amontised cosl using the effective interest method. The effeciive interest methad is 2 meshod
of caleulating the amortised cost of u financial instrument and sllocating the interest income over the
relevant period. The offective interest rate is the rate thar exactly discounrs estimated filture cash receipls
through the cupected life of the financial ssset or, when sppropriate, @ sharer perind to the net carrying
mmount of the finateial asset. When caloulating the effective interest rte, the company estinates cash flows
considering all contractual teems of the financial asset but docs not consider fiture credit losses, All fieance
inetane is recognized in the profit and luss account,

Prior 1o 1 January 2018, the vompany classificd its financiel assets as foans and receivables under LAS 39,
Leans and receivables were non-derivative fnancial asscrs with fixed or detsmminable paymients thal are nod
queted in an active market Such financial assets were initially recognised at fair value plos transaction costs
and subsequenly measured at amortised cost using the cffective imerest method. Finance revenue was
recarded mointerest receivable and similar income.

The company classifies iis financial linbilities as finaoeis) labilities messured st smortised cost. The
classification, which is desermioed sz inital recognition, depends on the pumpose for which they were
acquired ar originated,

Financial liabilities measured ar amortised cost are initially recognised at fir valoe plus Imnsaction coses
and subscquently measurcd at amortised cost using the cfinetive imerest method {see abovel. Finance costs,
inchiding discouns allowed on lssuc, are recorded in the profil and Joss account,
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L

NOTES AND

ACCOUNTING IMMLICLES (continued)
h.  Financial aseets and financial labilities {eanlnuwed)
{iiiy Oifsetting financial assets wod Anancial labilitics

Financial assels mod financial liabilities arc offeet and the nel amounr iz presentad in the balanes sheel
welvere there is:

() Currendly a legaliy enforceable right to set off the recugnisad amousts: and
{3ty Tmbetal 10 setile on 2 net Basis of 10 realise the asset and setile the Niahilicy simultancoosly.

Where these canditions are not met, financlal wsscts and financial labilitics arc presented on a gross basis
v the bialanee shoct.

i Current and deferved lax
The tax eapensc for the vear compriscs vurrent tax, Tax ks recognisad in the profil and loss accaunt,

Current tax is caleulaled on the hasts of the tax lawes enacted or substantively enacted ar the balance sheet date in
the countrics where the company uperutes and generaies tasuble income.

Defered fax is recognised an nespect of wll wmperary difsrences that have originated, but not reversed an the
balance sheet date, where transsctions or ovents have oceurred by that date thal will result in an abligation ta pay
mor tax of a right to pay Less tax i the future with the following sxceptions:

{iy  Delerred tax assers arg recugniscd only to e extent that the directors consider thar it Is more fikeiy than
rot that there will be suitshle taxable prolis from which fuluee reversal of the underlving temparary
differenves can be deducted,

(i) Deferred tax is mwasured on an undiseounted basis az the 1 mtes that are expected 1o apply in the pericds
in which wemparary differences roverse, based on tax mics and laws enncted or substantively enacied at
the balance sheet daie,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING FSTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of finsncia] satements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts recognised in these fnancial statements. The nature of estinition mesns that aeneal outcomes
could Jilfer from those estimates. Tn the opinlon of managemeny, thers were o judpements made that had @
sigmificant effect on wmownts recognised jo the linancial statements.

INTEREST RECFIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

Year ended Yeur ended
31 December 2018 3 December 20817
LSS 000 LS8'Mn
Ingerest on overnighl deposits it 33
Interest on loans e group undertakings (nole 9) - w1l 1,057
1,585 1,059
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

TOTHE F

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Year ended Year cofed
31 Decomber 2018 31 December 2017
LSS 000 LIS$'000
Management [ees charged by group undemakings {oote u) QRIT ‘J,{ul.?
Feecs charged by group indenakings for sub-delenated funclions
{mote b 09,373 -
Fees charged by external pacties for sub-delegated lunctions
{note b 29,159 .
Oiiver expenses 1,410 {42]
Audingrs’ romunertion - wedit services —_ 0 2N
- T 599 9,407

. Munagement fees charged by gronp wndemakings relate 1o operationa! and edministralive spport, and
ManaEeRent services received from group underiakings

b, As u resolt of the wdoption of RS 15, the company has prospectively prosented révenues and expenses
associated with arangernents where @ s principal 1o providing services haor ultimatcly sub-delepates the
provision of these services, such as distribution and portfolis moragemen, on & gross basis, resulling in an
imrease in both lemover and ndminisinutive expenses by USSA98.T million for the vear ended 31 December
18 in comparison to the company™s past présentalion,

STAFF COSTS

A% In the prior year, all persons formally assigned 10 the compusy’s Aperations ase employed by Fellow group
wdertskings. The chirges made by these group undemakings fur all services provided t the compary are included in
the managemenl fees charged by group ondenakings (soc noge %),

MRECTORS' CMOLUMENTS

The tible below resents e company”s directors” emoluments, which has been bome by group nnderiskings:

Year ended Vear cuded
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
LI5S0 L5y
Direelors:
Agercpate emolurhienls 230 161
Comipany pensivo contriitions w money purchide schemes 2 -
232 151

In accordance with the Compunies Aer 2006, direetors’ emoluments above represent the proportion of total
emoluments paid or payable in respect of qualitying services only. This Lot oaly inchides the value of cash and
bencfits in kind, und docs not include use value of equity swards in accondance with the provisions of Schedule 5 of
SE2008410. Dircetors also recvive emaluments for non-qualifying scrvices which arc net required 1o be disclnsed.

For persons who were directors for some or all of the year, four directors were members of a defined vontributian
schame. Uive directars have recoived o are due to receive Group the. shares in rezpect of & long-torm incentive
schems during the year. Mo director bas exercised stock uptions during the vear
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

N : : T s -

TAX ON PROTIT

Year endod Year ended
31 December 20018 31 December 2817
IS8 00 LS5 000
Cureent fax;
UK. corpuration tax 2,714 2,905
Adjistments i respect of prinr perieds o 9 (N
Todal tax o prafit 1.783 1898

Ihe 1able below presents a reconciliation between tas on proflt und the amount calculared by applving the weighed
averige rate of UK. earporation tax applicable 1o the company for the year of 19% (2017 19.25%) to the profit
belore tnxation.

Year cutbed Year ended
A1 December 2015 31 Decommlver 2017
LS5 000 LSS 000
Frofit before taxation 14,610 15,150
Profit multiplied by the weighred average rate in the UK. of
1995 (2017 16, 25%) 2,776 2916
Exchange differences (2} {an
Adjusiments in respeet of prior periods 4 (7
Total tax wn profit . 1,783 2,808
DEBTORS

Debrors, all uf which are due within one year of the balance sheet date comprise:;

31 December 2018 31 December 20017

LSS 04 [IS% 000
Amounts dus fram customers 6428 2,178
Amounts due from group undermkings 31,013 31058
(Kher debitors 0
37,463 35,233

Amouns due from group undertakings inchides a loan of USS30.6 million (31 December 2017 U8535.2 millicn)
advanced by the company to Goldman Suchs Totemational, a follow group undertaking, The loan is unsecured and
carries fiterest Al a variable morgin over the 1.8, Federal Reserve's federa) funds rate. The loan s repayable on
demand by the company or 31 July 2063, whichever is earlier. The company his developed and tested an i paimment
model that complies with the key requirements of IFRS 9. The results caleulsted by the model were nor materlal and
therefore the company hes nod recorded any credit kasses,

16
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CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31 Drecember 2014 3 December 2017

LS00 US$ 000
Ameants dise 1o group wndetakings 52,659 6,709
Ciroup reliek payahle 7,519 7024
Accruzsls 2848
Comparation thx puyablz 113 -
63,144 13,733
CALLED U1 SHARE CAPITAL
A1 3] December 2018 and 31 December 2017 called np share capital comprised:
31 December 2018 31 Deeenber 2017
Ma, LESMM0 N, L'SS 000
Allotted, called np aud folly paid
Crdinary sharcs of USST each 25,000,000 5000 25.000.00¢ 25,000
ISEIE ZSIFW

FINANCIAL COMMITMEN TS AND CONTINGENCIES
The company had no fnancial commitmesls and confingencics outstanding at year end (31 December 2017; LISSnil),
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MAN AGEMENT

Ihe company moniburs its capital on un onpoing basis, The company's obicctive i3 to be pruderitly capilulised n
terns, oF the amaunt and composition of its equily base compared 1o the company™s risk expasures. The approgrise
level and composition ol its equity capital is determined by multiple faclors incloding the company’s cusrenl and
liture regulatony capital requirenmwents, the results of the company™s capital planning and other factors such a8 the
husiness enviromment and conditions in e fnancial norkers,

During M1 axed 2017, the company was in complinnce with the capital roquirements sey by the FC4,
Uier | capital ag ar 3] December 2018 was USSER.2 millivn (31 December 2017 USSS6.4 million).

The oompany is cxposed 10 finanvial risk through Bl finaneial assets and financial liabilities. Due 1 the natsre of the
company's business wnd the assets amd labilities contalned within the company's balance shoet, the miost imporant
companents of linancial risk the dircctors consider rclevant to the entiey are market risk, credit rigk and liquidity risk,
The company, a5 pan of 4 global graup. adbercs to global risk manazement policics and presedusts.

f.  Market risk

Market righ is the risk of lows in the value of the company’s Tioancial sssets and financial [abilitics due o
chimges in markel conditions, Kisks arc monitored wd controlled through strong firmwide oversight and
independent control and supporl fonctions acrous the company’s business. Relovam markst risks for the
COHMNPARY WrE interest rate risk and currency risk

Interear rate risk resolts frony exposures o changes in level, slope and corvatues of vield curves, volatilities of
interesl rates and credit spreads

i7
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSKET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

N

13 FTNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEN L AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {eentinuad)

.

Markel risk (comtinued)
Currency cisk resules from changes in spot prices, forward prices wnd volatilities in LUTTENCY mafes.

The cumpany mavages ils wtenest rale wod cunency risk as pant of the group’s risk munagement policy, by
establishing evonomic hedges as uppropriaze 10 the circumstances of the company.

If interest rates had been 30 basis points higherJower and all other varishles were beld constant the COMpaRY 'S
profit for the year ended 31 December 20138 would increase/decrease by LiS$0.2 million (2017: USS0.1 million)

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the polentinl for loss dis 1o the default or deterioration jo the credic qualiy of 2
counterpany. Credit risk i muaneged by mevicwing the credit quality of countcmarties and reviewing, il
applicable, the underying collaternl agains which the assels are secured. The company’s makimom exposure lo
wredit risk is equivalont to the carrying value of jes financial assets us ot 31 Degember 20108 and 30 Docember
M7

Credit exposire
The vompany s credit expusures are described further beluw.
Cash ar bank and in huid, Cash at bank and in hand incladc bath imerest-bearing and fon-intcrest-bearing

deposits. Ta mitigate the risk of credit loss, the company places substantiully all of its depusits with highly-rated
banks

Tiebtors. The company is exposed 10 eredit risk froin il amoumts due from customees shd amouns due fram
group undertakings. Fees fram Invesment funds wre settled from the AL of the fund, for which the oredit risk
is consifered minimal,

Lityuidity risk

Liquidiny risk is the risk that the eontipany does not have sulficient cash 1o make paymenls to its eounlerpartics as
they fafl due, The company mansges fts liquidity risk in accordance with G% Group™s cotnprebensive and
conservalive set of liguidily and funding policies to addmess both commpany specific and broader industry or
gkl figuidiny events.

14, FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial gssets wnd financial labilices by eategory

All financial asze1s are categnrised as linancial assels moasured a1 amortised cost jn the currant veir and loans
and receivables in the prioe year. All financial liabilities are catcgorised a5 (inancial Liabilities messured al
Atnotised coat in the cumrent and prior vears.

Fair value of financial assets and financial Kahilides nol measored a v value

The conpany bis LS$I31.4 million (3] Decomber 2017: US$70.2 million) of corrent finsncial mssete and
175553.0 million (31 December 2017: USSI3.7 million) of carcent financéal lishilities that are not measured at
fair valuc. Chiven the short-term nature of these instruments, the carrying amounts vl the financial usscts and
financial liabilitics on rhe balance sheet are o reusonable approximation of fair value
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

15.

bl FINANCTA ’ 4
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {eamtinued)
e Maturity of finameial linbilites
Al financial tiabilities are duc within ong month of the balince sheet date,
FOST BALAMNCE SHEET EVENTS

O 24 Jamuiry 2019, dhe directors approved documents terminating the company's existing managemen! company
agreéments by the funds. The termination of these agreements took place on 28 Febroary 2019, Az a pesult the
crmpany s lund managemeni business activities ceased.

On 23 April 2019, the directons declared an interim dividend of US543.2 million (v its immediale parent underiiking
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Goldman Sachs Asset Management International
(
2019 1,755,714 9,638
(
EC4A 2BB 133
1869
1988
2018 12
5,420
¢)
(
2019 9,000
(
1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30
2008 28
2019 1,891
€) BNY Mellon Trust Company
(Ireland) Limited
(
2019 11,368,804 13
(
1994 10 13
1995
4 RBC Investor Services Ireland
Limited
(

2019 1,200 15
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124.38
(
1997 31
®)
BNY Mellon Fund Services Ireland) Designated Activity Company
(
2019 1,534,033 7,158
(
1994 31
1995
(6 Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC
(
2018 12 10,516,624,088 1,763
(
)
(
2019 48,323
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https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8F-a98202dc9c3a/

Description__of __auditors__responsibilities_ for__audit.pdf.
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Independent auditors' report to the unitholders of Goldman Sachs
USS$ Fund

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs US$ Fund's financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the Fund's assets, liabilities and financia position as at 31 December 2018 and of
its results for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting
standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting Standard 102
"The Financia Reporting Standard applicablein the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and promulgated by the Institute of
Chartered Accountantsin Ireland and Irish law); and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the European Communities (Undertakings
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, which
comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018;
the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for the
year then ended;

the Schedule of Investments as at 31 December 2018; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) ("1SAs (Ireland)") and applicable
law.

Our responsibilities under 1SAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Ireland, which includes |AASA's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following mattersin relation to which ISAs (Ireland) require us to report to you
where:

the Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

the Manager has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Fund's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Fund's ability
to continue as a going concern.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other than the
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Manager is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is amaterial misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these
responsibilities.

Responsihilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsihilities of the Manager for the financial statements

Asexplained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities set out on pages 3 and 4, the Manager is responsible
for the preparation of the financia statements in accordance with the applicable framework giving atrue and fair view.

The Manager is also responsible for such internal control as the Manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs (Ireland) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the IAASA website at:

https.//www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for
audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors' report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unithol ders of the Fund as a body in accordance with
the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as
amended) and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

12 April 2019
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https://www. 1aasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description_ of auditors_ responsibilities_ for_audit.pdf
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Independent auditors® report to the members of
Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited"s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the company"s assets, liabilities and financial position
as at 31 December 2018 and of its result for the 41 week period (the* period” ) then
ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
in Ireland (accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101* Reduced Disclosure Framework” , and Irish
law); and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2014.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Directors” Report and Audited
Financial Statements, which comprise:

the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018;

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the period then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland)

(* 1SAs (Ireland)” ) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under I1SAs (lreland) are further described in the Auditors®
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which includes the IAASA"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs
(Ireland) require us to report to you where:

the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company®s ability to continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not
a guarantee as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Directors® Report and Audited
Financial Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon.
The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of
assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors®™ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the Companies Act 2014 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the
audit, ISAs (lIreland) and the Companies Act 2014 require us also to report certain opinions
and matters as described below:

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the
information given in the Directors” Report for the period ended 31 December 2018 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identify any material misstatements in the
Directors™ Report.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors®™ Responsibilities set out on page 3
and 4, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (lreland)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the 1AASA"s website at: https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description__of _auditors__responsibilities_ for__audit.pdf. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters
We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for
the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the

financial statements to be readily and properly audited.
The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.
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Companies Act 2014 exception reporting

Directors” remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the
disclosures of directors® remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of
that Act have not been made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Vincent MacMahon

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

12 April 2019
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Independent auditors® report to the members of
Goldman Sachs Asset Management Global Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Asset Management Global Services Limited’ s financial
statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the company"s affairs as at 31 December 2018
and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101" Reduced
Disclosure Framework” , and applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise:
the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018; the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs
(UK " ) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in
the Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Emphasis of matter - financial statements prepared on a basis other than going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we draw attention
to Note 2 to the financial statements which describes the directors® reasons why the
financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concern.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors® Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the
audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors”™ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic Report and Directors® Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
Report and Directors” Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities set out on page 6,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors® remuneration specified by law are not made; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Nick Morrison (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

24 April 2019

258/258



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	４受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等

	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

